






From: Wayne Myles
To: Bobby Kofman; Sharon Kour
Cc: Darren O"Keefe; Alex Rice; Mathew Harris; Megan Taylor; Essber Essber
Subject: TIME SENSITIVE Blue Lobster Group CCAA Applicants
Date: Tuesday, June 24, 2025 6:45:47 AM

Good morning all. 

I am writing further to the meeting Darren O’Keefe and I had with the Monitor’s Counsel
Sharen Kour last evening. 

During that call, we discussed a number of issues arising for the Monitor from the Applicants’
Court filing yesterday, including in respect of the amount required to pay out secured and
unsecured creditors, process considerations and certainty as to availability and use of funds
held by and under the control of Cox & Palmer partner Gavin MacDonald. 

In the circumstances, and given the Monitor’s ongoing mandate and obligations to support the
Applicants throughout the CCAA processes, the Applicants are requesting an urgent meeting
today, involving Mr. Kofman and his counsel plus Alex Rice and his financial advisor Mat
Harris plus Applicants’ legal counsel. The agenda is to endeavor to reach consensus on
amounts necessary to achieve required payouts (other than where deferred payment
arrangements are available to the Applicants), confirming more certainty on funds being
available irrevocably if the requested Order is granted, and on how final amounts owing will
be determined and paid out.  

Accordingly, we request that the Monitor and its counsel confirm availability for today as
soon as possible. 

Cheers;
Wayne 

Wayne Myles, KC, FIIC

Counsel, Lawyer | O'Keefe & Sullivan
P 709 685 0889
E wmyles@okeefesullivan.com
Delivery & Mail: 80 Elizabeth Ave., 2nd Floor, St. John's, NL A1A 1W7





From: Darren O"Keefe
To: Bobby Kofman
Cc: Mitch Vininsky; Tony Trifunovic; Sharon Kour; Wayne Myles; Megan Taylor
Subject: Re: Blue Lobster Capital Ltd. et. al.
Date: Tuesday, June 24, 2025 10:52:34 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Mr. Kour, Mr. Kofman:

I'm writing to follow up on our call yesterday. We reiterate our view that it is incumbent
upon the Monitor to work with the Company to the extent required to assist it with this
restructuring. The Motion we filed to exit the CCAA process is not a "Bid", "Proposal" a
"Plan" or a competing "Transaction", it is a return to solvency and a resolution of the
Company's liquidity crisis that everyone (including the Monitor) identified as being the
cause of the insolvency. To that end, we would like to address what we understand are
the Monitors concerns. 

The objections we have heard in response to our clients present application can be
summarized as follows:

1. Its too late to redeem the Company given the SISP is concluded and a Transaction
selected. This is an issue that the Court can determine and we are prepared to
argue that point. 

2. There is concern around the conditions of release of the funds held by the Escrow
Agent. Our client is willing to work with the Monitor to assuage this concern. One
solution, for example, would be providing evidence of an irrevocable direction
from the Lender to have the Escrow Agent pay the Loan proceeds to the Monitor for
disbursement upon issuance of the Order. Our client is open to the Monitors
feedback on this and exactly what he would like to see.

3.  Concerns whether the money is "real". The money is in the Cox & Palmer trust
account. This is confirmed. 

4. That the application to exit the CCAA is an inferior transaction to the Transactions
proposed. Again, the application is not a "Transaction" and based on the Monitor's
report, is not inferior. Our clients exit will see all unassumed secured debts paid in
full, and all unsecured debts paid in full. The Transactions do not do that.  In order
to ensure that we have the same numbers as the Monitor, and to give all
parties the necessary comfort on this issue, we have asked for the Monitors
cooperation and a phone call today our client and its advisors to review the 17



June 2025 payout statement. To be clear, based on our current proceeds, even if
we accept the Monitor's numbers there are enough funds available to pay out all
unassumed debts.  

5. Lack of a "Claims Process". We are struggling to understand which creditors would
potentially benefit from a claims process, unless this concern is with respect to
ensuring we have up to date numbers from all known creditors. If that is the case,
our client is open to incorporating a claims process in its order, to be run by
the Monitor and concluded within the 30 day stay period that we have sought
to conclude the "Remaining Activities".

Finally, we would ask that the Monitor and its counsel confirm for the Companies their
current WIP so that we can factor that into our payout. This is required before close of
business today.

We reserve the right to enter this letter on the record to demonstrate our clients
willingness to work with the Monitor to address any concerns it has with our clients
application prior to the hearing on Thursday, other than the legal question identified in 1.
above which will be up to the Court to determine at the eventual hearing.  We hope that
will not be necessary and again, would ask for cooperation in this matter. 

Thank you,

Darren D. O’Keefe
Partner, Lawyer | O’Keefe & Sullivan
P 709 800 6536 | C 709 699 3002
E dokeefe@okeefesullivan.com

This email (including any attachments) is confidential and may contain solicitor client or other privileged information. It
is intended only for the use of the addressee(s). If you have received this email in error,  please notify the sender immediately,
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